# Guide to the Church of Saint Joachim, New York City Records CMS.079

Finding aid prepared by Richard del Giudice

This finding aid was produced using the Archivists' Toolkit September 20, 2013

Describing Archives: A Content Standard

Center for Migration Studies July 1987

# **Table of Contents**

Summary Information	3
Biographical/Historical note	4
Scope and Contents note	4
Arrangement note	5
Administrative Information	5
Controlled Access Headings	6
Other Finding Aids note.	6
Collection Inventory	7
Series I: Correspondence.	7
Series II: Financial Records.	9
Series III: Minutes of the Trustees of St. Joachim.	. 14
Series IV: Property, Rent, Remodelling.	15
Series V: Court Summons, Last Wills and Testaments	17
Series VI: Parish and Parishioners.	18
Series VII: Religious Societies.	20
Series VIII: Church Bulletins, Theatrical Events, Clippings, Souvenir, Booklets, Photographs, and	
other Items.	. 23
Series IX: Materials Related to World War I	24
Series X: Baptismal, Marriage, and Death Records	. 26

# **Summary Information**

**Repository** Center for Migration Studies

**Creator** Church of Saint Joachim (New York City).

Title Church of Saint Joachim, New York City Records

**Date [inclusive]** 1888-1959

**Extent** 8.0 Linear feet in 7 record cartons and 2 manuscript boxes.

**Language** English

Language of Materials note Materials are in English and Italian.

**Abstract** This collection contains the records of the Church of Saint Joachim, which

was located in lower Manhattan in New York City. The records reflect the Italian immigrant community of the church and contains vital records, meeting minutes, correspondence, financial records, activities of religious

societies, and other records, from 1889-1945.

#### **Preferred Citation note**

Center for Migration Studies of New York; Church of Saint Joachim, New York City Records (CMS 079); Box; Folder.

## Biographical/Historical note

The Church of Saint Joachim opened to public worship in 1888, after it was purchased from a Protestant corporation. It was the first exclusively Italian parish established in the Archdiocese of New York administered by the Missionary Fathers of St. Charles Borromeo. The first expedition of these missionaries in the United States took place in 1887 and opened a temporary chapel on Centre Street and another on Mulberry Street. In December 1888, Archbishop Bernard Corrigan appointed Reverend Felice Morelli as pastor. The parish consisted of poor Italian laborers, numbering 15,000 when established and 25,000 at the parish's peak.

The church and adjoining property was purchsed in 1888, through Antonio Cuneo, from Mitchel A.C. Levy for \$82,000. From 1894 to 1898, the interior and exterior of the church were renovated, the rectory was built, and constructed three apartments houses on the adjacent property on Roosevelt Street and Park Row. Until 1907, when Friar Vincenzo Jannuzzi became pastor, the church was in a significant amount of debt. Jannuzzi adjusted the financial conditions of the parish and devoted his work to the renovation and decoration of the church. A new main altar and sanctuary railings of Carrara marble were installed, niches of saints placed alongside the walls, and eight stained glass windows inaugurated. He also improved the rectory and church basement, transforming it into a hall for social activities and Sunday school classes. It was at this church that Mother Frances X. Cabrini began her activities in America.

In 1926, Friar Arnaldo Vanoli succeeded Jannuzzi and in 1935, Friar Tarcisio Prevedello became pastor. Upon entering his office, Prevedello decided to bring a new life to parish by reorganizing the societies and Sunday school and by fostering social activities.

In 1957, the City of New York decided to clear the area where the church was located, in order to build the Chateau Pierre Housing Project. Efforts were made to save church as an historical monument, but it was not possible to impede its demolition, which occurred in 1959.

## **Scope and Contents note**

This collection contains the records of the Church of Saint Joachim in New York City, from 1889-1945. The materials consist of correspondence, financial records, meeting minutes, registers, vital records, photographs, records of activities of religious societies, court summons, last wills and testaments, bulletins, and printed materials. The majority of the papers are related to the work of pastor Vincenzo Jannuzzi for the church. The collection reflects the financial conditions of the church as well as the social life and welfare of the Italian immigrant community in lower Manhattan. The collection also gives a sense of what lower Manhattan resembled at the beginning of the 20th century, both the population and the geography of the neighborhood.

## **Arrangement note**

This collection is arranged into ten series:

Series I: Correspondence Series II: Financial Records

Series III: Minutes of the Trustees of St. Joachim

Series IV: Property, Rent, and Remodeling

Series V: Court Summons and Last Wills and Testaments

Series VI: Parish and Parishioners Series VII: Religious Societies

Series VIII: Church Bulletins, Theatrical Events, Souvenir Booklets, Photographs, and other Items

Series IX: Materials related to World War I

Series X: Baptismal, Marriage, and Death Records

## **Administrative Information**

#### **Publication Information**

Center for Migration Studies July 1987

#### **Revision Description**

Edited by Nicole Greenhouse for DACS compliance September 2013

#### **Conditions Governing Access note**

Open to researchers by appointment.

#### **Conditions Governing Use note**

Copyright is owned by the Center for Migration Studies. Permission to publish materials must be requested before use.

#### **Immediate Source of Acquisition note**

This collection was donated from the Eastern Province headquarters.

#### **Processing Information note**

In 2013, this collection was entered into the Archivists' Toolkit in compliance with DACS and folder descriptions were simplified from the original print finding aid. (The original finding aid is available in print upon request). Folder titles in the container list online may vary from the the physical folder titles.

## **Controlled Access Headings**

#### Personal Name(s)

- Demo, Antonio
- Jannuzzi, Vincenzo

#### Subject(s)

- Baptismal records | z New York (State) | z New York.
- Church records and registers |z New York (State) |z New York.
- Church societies.
- Italian Americans |x Religion.
- Marriage records | z New York (State) | z New York.
- World War, 1914-1918.

## Other Finding Aids note

The original inventory is available in print upon request.

## **Collection Inventory**

#### Series I: Correspondence 1907-1935

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series contains correspondence to and from several pastors of St. Joachim, related to church and personal affairs. There letters to and from Jannuzzi and the Archbishop of New York on the administration of St. Joachim. Many letters, mostly by Jannuzzi, deal with the financial hardship and related problems of the church. Included are letters by Friar Demo, Friar Martinell, and other priests. An item of interest is an undated letter from Professor Giannini from Casa Italiana at Columbia University to Jannuzzi, soliciting information on Italians during the depression. Jannuzzi's response contains an analysis of the moral, social, and financial conditions of the Italians.

	Box	Folder
Lodovico Martinelli form letter with invitation to purchase tickets to a concert to benefit the church; Gambera's letter related to masses celebrated at St. Joachim Oct-Nov 1903	1	1
Letter by Jannuzzi to Clergy of New York City for donation of objects to be disposed of at a future church fair undated	1	2
15 Letters by Jannuzzi to Father Demo, previous administrator of St. Joachim 1906-1927	1	3
Demo's Letter related to a payment made by Jannuzzi Apr 12, 1923	1	4

Letters addressed to Jannuzzi from priests and an order of sisters from Italy, concerning the proposal to establish a day nursery at St. Joachim, the case of poor Italians at St. James parish, and a testimonial girl to Father Massimo Rinaldi 1908-1934	1	5
Letters addressed to Jannuzzi 1915-1924	1	6
Letters to Jannuzzi from Supervisor of Catholic Charities, the Archbishop of New York, the Vicar General's Office, the Chancery Office, and Monsignor Ferrante 1907-1918	1	7
Letters to Jannuzzi from the Archbishop of New York and the Chancery Office on celebrations and concerts to benefit Roman Catholic Organizations 1918	1	8
Letter by Jannuzzi to the Bishop of Brooklyn, requesting to establish a chapel at Patchogue, Long Island May 6, 1916	1	9
Letter by Jannuzzi to Cardinal John Farley on a plan to transfer the Italian parish from St. Joachim to St. James Feb 16, 1917	1	10
Letter by Jannuzzi to Cardinal John Farley regarding the Knights of Columbus War Fund Apr 14, 1918	1	11
Letter by Marchi to Demo; Letter by Poggio to Demo on the state of the church 1905-1906	1	12
Letters by Jannuzzi 1910, 1913	1	13

Letters to Reverend Arnaldo Vanoli 1926-1934	1	14
Letter by the Secretary of St. Joachim Lyceum to the Archbishop of New York Oct 24, 1905	1	15
Two Letters in Italian 1902, 1916	1	16
Letter by Professor Torquato Giannini of Cara Italiana to Jannuzzi on how the Italian community was effected by the economic crisis of the 1930s and Jannuzzi's response 1933	1	17

#### Series II: Financial Records 1896-1945

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series contains the records of bonds and promissory notes made by St. Joachim to financial institutions and private persons; correspondence, mostly by Jannuzzi with lawyers, real estate offices, creditors, and the Archdiocese of New York related to the church and property owned by the church. Included are insurance policies, tax payments to New York City, and financial reports to the Archdiocese of New York for the years 1889-1945. Also included are the contracts and records of payment to the organist and bulls and invoices from 1905-1925.

	Box	Folder
Bond made by Church to Washington Life Insurance Company for \$260,000 Jan 13, 1896	1	18
Letter from Jannuzzi to Washington Life Insurance Company 1905, 1908-1909	1	19

Letter from Jannuzzi to W.P. O'Connor Jun 10, 1909	1	20
Letters from Washington Life Insurance Company to Jannuzzi 1908	1	21
Receipts from Insurance Company for mortgage payments made by St. Joachim 1900-1905	1	22
Certificate from the Registrar's Office of the County of New York City certifying mortgage made by St. Joachim to John Reid and Trustees 1896	1	23
Letters from Reid and Company to Demo and Jannuzzi 1905-1908	1	24
Receipts from Reid and Co. on interest payments made by St. Joachim 1903-1908	1	25
Letter related to mortgage made to Joseph Mulgreen 1904-1907	1	26
Receipts from Mulgreen 1902-1906	1	27
Letter from Jannuzzi to Mulgreen related to a visits with the Archbishop of New York 1913	1	28
Letters from the Pittsburgh Life and Trust Company to Jannuzzi 1909	1	29
Financial document signed by Jannuzzi and Demo, with Charles Zerbarini, Lawyer and Witness, related to the surrendering of 34 bonds held by Demo to St. Joachim 1913	1	30

Handwritten Summaries of Interest owned by St. Joachim by Demo 1905	1	31
Letter to Cardinal Hayes regarding Demo's financial relationship with St. Joachim 1920	1	32
Receipts from creditors for payments made on promissory note and bonds by St. Joachim 1896-1905	1	33
Letters from the Archbishop of New to Demo and Januzzi related to Joachim property, mortgage, and bank loan 1907-1909	1	34
Letter from Monsignor Ferrante to pastors of St. Joachim 1904-1909	1	35
Draft Letters by Demo 1906-1907	1	36
Letters from Jannuzzi to Mr. Reid concerning the sale of tenement houses owned by the church and plans to repair the church using the profits 1908	1	37
Financial document made by St. Joachim acknowledging indebtedness to Andrea Casazza May 28, 1896	1	38
Financial document made by St. Joachim acknowledging indebtedness to Giovanettina Lippi May 28, 1896	1	39
Receipts from Lippi on interest paid by St. Joachim undated	1	40
Letters from Charles Zerbarini to Jannuzzi related to property owned by the church 1908, 1914	1	41

Letters from J. O'Gorman to Jannuzzi related to the examination of title to premises on Roosevelt Street and New Bowery, for a loan 1909	1	42
Letters from the law office of John and Edward Daly to Jannuzzi related to the church property 1907-1909	1	43
Correspondence between Leonard D. Rossi and Reid and Company related to St. Joachim and the property owned by the church 1908	1	44
Letters from real estate and law offices related to the property of the church 1905-1913	1	45
Survey conducted on the property of St. Joachim to secure a loan undated	1	46
Financial Report 1893-1895, 1898-1900	1	47
Financial Report 1905-1908	1	48
Financial Report 1909-1913	1	49
Financial Report 1914-1919	1	50
Financial Report 1920-1922, 1925-1929	1	51
Financial Report 1931-1943, 1945	1	52
Insurance Policies 1902-1909	2	53

Correspondence with the City of New York, related to the property owned by the church 1901-1910	2	54
St. Joachim's Tax Payments to New York City 1897-1908	2	55
Contract between Delia Valeri (organist) and Lodovico Martinelli (pastor) at St. Joachim 1904	2	56
Correspondence between the organist and pastor of St. Joachim 1905-1908	2	57
Lists of musical services rendered by organist 1905-1928	2	58
Correspondence and invoices from organ builders and organ maintenance 1905-1928	2	59
Invoices 1900-1907	2	60
Invoices 1905-1939	2	61
Invoices 1905-1938	2	62
Invoices 1905-1938	2	63
Checks and Receipts 1913-1918	2	64
Invoices from New York Edison Company, the Gas Company, and the New York Telephone Company 1905-1928	2	65

Booklet containing Jannuzzi handwritten records of rent collection, expenses for the rental property owned by St. Joachim at 38-40 New Bowery 1912-1926	2	65a
Booklet contains Jannuzzi's handwritten monthly records of income and expenses at St. Joachim 1920-1925	2	65b

#### Series III: Minutes of the Trustees of St. Joachim circa 1894-1898, 1902-1903, 1908

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series contains the minutes of meetings held at St. Joachim and at the office of the Archbishop of New York. The meetings were convened to elect the trustees of the church from a list of candidates under consideration; the issuance of notes and bonds; the extension of the mortgage with the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company; and the sale of property owned by the church.

	Box	Folder
Handwritten Records of the ST. Joachim's election of the trustees with a list of candidates circa 1894-1898	3	66
Notebook with the memorandum on a resolution passed at a meeting of the trustees of St. Joachim held at the office Archbishop of New York Dec 3, 1902	3	67
Documents of special meeting of the Board of Trustees on extending the mortgage made to the Washington Life Insurance Company Feb 28, 1908	3	68
Resolution adapted by the Board of Trustees to sell to Mario Agri undated	3	69

#### Series IV: Property, Rent, Remodelling 1907-1949

#### Scope and Contents note

This series contains records dealing with real estate transactions, records of rent collected on apartment houses and several loans made to tenants. Included are architectural drawings, and other records related to the remodeling of the church and rental houses. There are records of agreements between the church and contractors in connection with the alterations and remodelling of rental houses and the church. Also included are two inventories of the church and recory made in 1911 and 1919. Of particular interest is the correspondence from 1916-1916 between Jannuzzi and real estate agents related to the plan to establish an Italian industrial model town in Pompton, New Jersey and Patchogue, New York. Maps and the layout of town are included.

	Box	Folder
Drafts of two legal documents, related to the purchase of tenement property owned by St. Joachim 1907-1908	3	70
St. Joachim's application to the Supreme Court of New York to sell real estate property and executive release to Manhattan Railway Company 1914	3	71
Specification for the work and material for the alteration, repair and decoration of the inside of the church 1908	3	72
Agreements between pastor of St. Joachim and contractors 1908-1909	3	73
Correspondence with a company in Italy related to paintings and marble works ordered by Jannuzzi for the Church of St. Joachim 1911-1912	3	74
Survey of the church and property owned 1907	3	75

Agreement signed between Jannuzzi and the Brunswick-Balke Company for the bowling alley and pool tables provided in the basement of the church 1921	3	76
Statement of agreement between Vanoli and Leo Barbieri for the installation of Baptismal Font 1926	3	77
Specification for the alterations to be made in tenement houses at 28 and 30 Roosevelt Street 1939	3	78
Agreements between the church and four contractors for alterations to be made in the tenement houses 1939	3	79
Four altar designs and blueprints undated	3	80
Blueprints showing alterations of the basement at 26 Roosevelt Street undated	3	81
Blueprints showing alterations of property of St. Joachim undated	3	82
Blueprints showing the general plan and profile for the 3rd Avenue Line, New Bowery 1911-1913	3	83
Contracts and Correspondence related to organ repairs undated	3	84
Letter to Jannuzzi and letters to Prevedello from two architects 1910, 1939	3	85
Certificate of Electrical Inspection at 40 New Bowery 1939	3	86

Inventory of the church and rectory 1911, 1913	3	87
Rent accounts of premises owned by the church at 64 Catherine Street, 36-38 New Bowery Street, 28-30 Roosevelt Street 1898-1942	3	88
Leases by the church to tenants, renting property of the church 1916-1926	3	89
Letters from the Tenement House Department of the City of New York 1909	3	90
Deed to land purchased at Westfield, New Jersey by Costantino Sassi 1928	3	91
Correspondence between Jannuzzi and real estate agents about a proposed plan to establish an Italian model town in Pompton, New Jersey and Patchogue, New York 1916-1917	3	92
Proposed layout of a portion of property at Pompton, New York undated	3	93

### Series V: Court Summons, Last Wills and Testaments 1893-1930

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series contains summons and complaints of the members of the "Italian Colony" that made contributions toward the purchase of the church and placed it in the custody of Antonio Cuneo, who purchased the property in Roosevelt Street, and took a deed in his own name; and a summons and complaint against Friar Felice Morelli. Included is a claim against St. Joachim, and the last will and testament of several St. Joachim's parishioners.

testament of several St. Joachim's parishioners.		

Folder

**Box** 

Copies of summons and complaints, John Muzio et al. v. Peter Pia et al. 1893, 1895	4	94-95
Copy of Summons and Complaint, Giovanni Merli and Celestina Merli v. Felice Morelli 1893	4	96
Margaret Stephenson v. Church of St. Joachim 1905	4	97
Last Will and Testament of Giovannina "Anna" Lippi and funeral arrangements 1915-1921	4	98-99
Surrogate's Court of New York: Notice of Probate, the last will and testament of Carolina Feppiano undated	4	100
Letter Informing Reverend Vanoli that Antonio De Mattei, deceased, made provision in his will to leave the sum of \$500 for 52 masses yearly 1930	4	101

#### Series VI: Parish and Parishioners 1907-1945

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series contains the reports of the church. It includes the Status Animarum (state of the souls) to the Diocese of New York, for the years 1905, 1924-1945; materials on St. Joachim's parish contributions to Catholic charities; and material on novena missions and lenten devotions. Included the records of the parish census taken in 1923-1924.

	Box	Folder
Status Animarum 1905-1945	4	102

Letters from the Director of Catholic Charities 1923	4	103
Report including list of captains, workers, and classified contributors 1923	4	104
Pamphlets 1923	4	105
List of contributors to Catholic Charities 1923	4	106
Memorandum to Jannuzzi 1924	4	107
List of contributors to Catholic Charities 1924	4	108
Letters from the Directors of Catholic Charities 1929	4	109
Notebook containing records of candidates who wanted to marry and their witnesses 1907-1908	4	110
Novena in honor of St. Vincent Martyr by Francescantonio di Crasco undated	4	111
Mission Bulletin undated	4	112
Archdiocese of New York, Lenten Devotions for the Churches of the diocese 1924	4	113
Booklet containing list of masses celebrated 1904	4	114

Contract between St. Joachim and a parishioner in which the latter agrees to pay \$4 a month for the electric light to the Blessed Virgin di Ripalta 1930	4	115
Abandoned campaign to solicit funds from parishioners to erect a new school and church building 1924	4	116
Account of proposed division of the parishes of St. Joachim and St. Joseph undated	4	117

#### Series VII: Religious Societies 1889-1922

#### **Scope and Contents note**

The priests of St. Joachim labored for the social well-being of their parishioners. In order to bring people together, they organized over twelve church societies, including the Confraternita S. Rocco, Societa Madri Cristiane, Societa S. Luigi, Societa S. Michele Arcangelo, and the Dante Catholic Club. In 1922, the basement was renovated for the Dante Catholic Club. It included a gymnasium, reading and games rooms, and started out with a membership of 350 young boys. This series contains statements, order of parades, letters, lists, announcements, and clippings related to societies and their activities. There is also a significant amount of materials related to Confraternita di San Rocco and the St. Rocco statue.

	Box	Folder
Written agreement between Morelli, pastor of St. Joachim, and parishioners representing the Society of St. Michael the Archangel, accepting a statue of St. Michael for St. Joachim 1890	5	118
Societa di San Rocco 1900	<b>Box</b> 5	<b>Folder</b> 119-128
Scope and Contents note		

In 1888, the men and women who had come to America from the city of Potenza, raised \$1000 and used that sum to import from Italy the statue of St. Rocco, their patron saint. An organization, the Confraternita di San Rocco, was formed to arrange for the annual observation of their saint's day. This organization made a contract with their pastor Felice Morelli, according to which the statue was to have a place in the church. In 1906, the president of another Societa di San Rocco, informed the pastor of St. Joachim of their intention to remove the statue from the church. The statue was removed and temporarily placed in the chapel of the local funeral parlor. This arbitrary decision caused the people to secure a court oder until the statue was restored to its original place. This subseries contains correspondence, legal documents, clippings, and agreements related to this disagreement. Other materials are related to St. Rocco's feast. 5 129 Contract between Michele Magaldi and Felice Morelli, on a donation to the church the statue of Nostra Signora Addolorata 1889 5 130 Notarized contract between Alussi and the Scoieta San Vincenzo Martire di Craso, related to the consignment of the Statue of San Vincent 1901 5 131 Contract between the president of the Societa Santa Rosalia and Jannuzzi on the donation of a Statue of S. Rosalia 1911 5 132 Societa del S. Rosario: List of contributors undated 5 133 List of contributors for the purchase a banner for the Sacro Cuore 1923 5 134 Constitution and By-Laws of St. Joachim Lyceum undated 5 135 Dante Catholic Boy's Club 1921

Question and Answer Sheets, and field day report of the Catholic Boy's Club 1921-1922	5	136
Letters to Jannuzzi concerning activities of Dante Catholic Boys Club 1921-1922	5	137
Letter from St. Joachim's Church to Paul T. Jr. president of the Catholic Boys Clubs for the Archdiocese of New York 1922	5	138
Statuto dei Padri Cristiani Sotto la Protezione di San Giuseppe after 1907	5	139
From Letters from Societa Porto Salvo Cannitellese di Mutuo Soccorso di New York and Societa Salandrese di M.S. in New York 1918	5	140
Jannuzzi form letter to the president of Italian-American societies, inviting all members to attend a parade held by the Royal Italian Commission headed by Prince of Udine 1917	5	141
Letter from secretaries of Italian-American Societies responding to Jannuzzi's letter of invitation to parade 1917	5	142
List of 16 societies from St. Joachim that attended the parade 1917	5	143
Order of parade 1917	5	144
Clippings concerning the parade 1917	5	145

# Series VIII: Church Bulletins, Theatrical Events, Clippings, Souvenir, Booklets, Photographs, and other Items 1903-1947

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series contains several copies of the 1946-1947 parish bulletins, clippings dealing with the church news, social events, and theatrical programs performed at St. Joachim from 1903-1923. Included are souvenir copies of the programs of the silver and golden anniversaries of the church, printed material related to the church and clergy, messages to the youth of the parish, and photographs of several priests and seminarians.

	Box	Folder
Parish Bulletin of St. Joachim's Church Nov 1946-Mar 1947	5	146
Clippings on events at St. Joachim's 1907-1925	5	147
Programs of 11 theatrical presentations performed at St. Joachim 1903-1923	5	148
Booklets on the occasion of St. Joachim's Silver Anniversary 1913	5	149
Booklets published on the occasion of the Golden Jubilee of St. Joachim 1938	5	150
Booklets published on the occasion of the Silver Jubilee of Arnaldo Vanoli, pastor of St. Joachim and Vittorio Cangiano, assistant pastor undated	5	151
L'eco Cattolico: Chiesa di S. Gioacchino 1907-1909	5	152

Photographs: Portraits of Antonio Demo, Cangiano, Micelini, Moretto, Di Nonno, Quadranti, Scarenzi, Parolin, Perazzo, Castellano, Joseph D'Andrea, Monteverde, Pope Pius X, John Cardinal Farley, and group photos of seminarians from Istituto Cristoforo Colombo circa 1907	5	153
Form letters sent by committee about dinners honoring the return of Jannuzzi from Italy 1910-1912	5	154
Memorandum "Reason for the Parochial Limitation(s)" 1916	5	155
Handwritten narrative of the escape of a boat from stormy waters near the port of Connitello, Calabria, Italy undated	5	156
Message to the youth of St. Joachim's parish, "To Our Young People," by Michael Lavelle, rector of St. Patrick's Cathedral undated	5	157
Writings describing the inception of St. Joachim, St. Rocco, and St. Joseph undated	5	158
Copies of Ozanan Bulletin Jun 1915, Mar 1916	5	159
List of families that received Christmas packages 1934	5	160
Series IX: Materials Related to World War I 1916-1920		
Scope and Contents note		
This series contains material concerning Jannuzzi's activities and correspondence.  War Campaign of 1918. The agency collected money for the men in the armed		

Included is printed material and correspondence with the United States Food Administrative Program, as well as other materials pertaining to World War I.

	Box	Folder
List of families from St. Joachim's parish whose men were called by the Italian government to serve in World War I 1916-1917	5	161
United War Work Campaign, through Catholic War Fund and other agencies, combined to raise a common war fund 1918	5	162
Letters and pamphlets pertaining to the Red Cross' activities during World War I 1918	5	163
Letters and pamphlets pertaining to the purchase of Liberty Bonds 1918	5	164
Letters to Jannuzzi from the Selective Service of Local Board No. 91 1918	5	165
Letter from Jannuzzi sent to President Wilson on occasion of the Anniversary of the Declaration of Independence and response from President's secretary 1918	5	166
List with contributions made by parishioners of St. Joachim to the Italian Red Cross and letters from the Red Cross to Jannuzzi 1918	5	167
Letters from the Roman Legion of America, a patriotic society organized to disseminate information to counteract German propaganda 1918	5	168
Form Letter written by Jannuzzi exhorting Italians to manifest their patriotism for Italy and the United States 1917	5	169

Letter to Jannuzzi from the Minute Men, an organization that fought German propaganda during World War I 1918	5	170
Letter from Comitato Festa, Associazione Combattenti (an organization of Italian-American veterans of World War I), inviting Jannuzzi to celebration of Italian victory over the Austrians 1920	5	171
Letters dealing with World War I and the Italian community undated	5	172
Clippings from "Il Progresso" with articles on World War I 1918	5	173
Correspondence from New York State Food Commission and United States Food Commission related to food conservation programs during World War I undated	5	174
Bulletins and circulars issued by the United States Food Commission about food conservation undated	5	175

#### Series X: Baptismal, Marriage, and Death Records 1883-1947

#### **Scope and Contents note**

This series consists mostly of oversize registers and related documents. When Morelli landed in New York in 1888, he rented a store at Centre Street temporarily converted it into the Cappella Della Resurrezione, the series holds three registers of baptisms performed at the Parrocchia Della Resurrezione di New York. The series contains marriage documents and registers from 1898-1947; registers of death from 1895-1923; register of meeting minutes from 1908-1923; and registers of administrative records of St. Joachim dealing with the inception of the church and the tenement houses, the physical condition of the church, statements of income and expenditures of the church, and other items.

Rov	Fol	der

Birth and Baptismal Records circa 1895-1907	6	176
Birth and Baptismal Records circa 1908-1938, 1951	6	177
Baptismal Register Jun 1888-Jan 1890	6	178a
Baptismal Register 1888-1895	6	178
Baptismal Register 1889-1891	6	179
Baptismal Register 1890-1891	6	180
Baptismal Register 1891-1893	6	181
Baptismal Register 1892-1893	6	182
Baptismal Register Jan 1894-Mar 1895	7	183
Baptismal Register May 1895-Nov 1896	7	184
Baptismal Register Nov 1898-Dec 1899	7	185
Baptismal Register Jan 1900-Jan 1901	7	186
Baptismal Register Apr 1901-Apr 1902	7	187
Baptismal Register May 1902-May 1903	7	188

Baptismal Register Jun 1904-Oct 1905	7	189
Baptismal Register Jul 1905-Jul 1906	7	190
Baptismal Register Jan 1907-Mar 1908	7	191
Baptismal Register May 1907-May 1908	7	192
Marriage documents issued by the office of Cardinal Farley 1906-1917	8	193
Marriage documents issued by the office of Cardinal Farley 1920-1935, 1939	8	194
Marriage certificates 1920-1925	8	195
Certificate and Record of Marriage 1918-1922	8	196
Marriage Certificates 1920-1924	8	197
Marriage Certificates 1918-1926	8	198
Marriage Licenses 1924-1928	8	199
Marriage Documents 1883, 1899-1903	8	200
Marriage Documents 1904	8	201

Marriage Documents 1906	8	202
Marriage Documents 1907	8	203
Marriage Documents 1908	8	204
Marriage Documents 1909	8	205
Marriage Documents 1910	8	206
Marriage Documents 1911-1912	8	207
Marriage Documents 1913	8	208
Marriage Documents 1914	8	209
Marriage Documents 1915	8	210
Marriage Documents 1916	8	211
Marriage Documents 1917-1918	8	212
Marriage Documents 1919	8	213
Marriage Documents 1920-1922, 1923, 1936, 1947	8	214
Certificato di Stato Libero 1902-1915	8	215

Certificato di Sposalizio 1908-1909	8	216
Marriage Register 1890-1899	8	217
Marriage Register 1894-1896	8	218
Marriage Register 1900-1905	8	219
Marriage Register 1905-1908	8	220
Marriage Register 1906-1907	9	221
Marriage Register 1910-1920	9	222
Confirmation Register 1895-1910	9	223
Death Certificates 1900-1918	9	224
Death Registers 1907-1913	9	225
Death Registers 1917-1923	9	226
Records of the minutes of the corporation of St. Joachim 1908-1923	9	227
Register of renters, monthly rental income, and expenditures for the maintenance of the building undated	9	228

Register of rental income from houses rented and statements of income	9	229
and expenditures, including a brief account of the construction of rental		
apartment houses on the property owned by St. Joachim at Roosevelt		
Street and New Bowery 1896-1900		